
 
 
 

REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 19, 2010 

7:30 P.M. 
201 WEST WATER STREET 

PIQUA, OHIO   45356 
 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 ROLL CALL 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
 PROCLAMATION – Family Month in the City of Piqua 
     Church of Jesus Christ of Latter – Day Saints 
 Accepting – President Mark Zelnick and Bishop Richard Cartwright 
   
 
  RESIDENCE PRIDE AWARDS 

 527 N. Downing Street  Lenny & Teresa DeCasseres 
 1113 Nicklin Avenue  Matthew & Julie Barge 
 1532 Garfield Street   Sylvester & Judith Cutcher 
 901 Boone Street   Amy Robinson 
 3229 Cherokee Drive  Chris & Valerie Lefeld 

 
 

AA..  CCOONNSSEENNTT  AAGGEENNDDAA  
 

a. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Approval of the minutes from the October 5, 2010 Regular City Commission Meeting  
 

BB..  NNEEWW  BBUUSSIINNEESSSS  
  

a. ORD. NO. 28-10 (1st Reading) 
 An Ordinance to authorize the annexation of land owned by the City of Piqua Municipal 
 Corporation 
 

b. RES. NO. R-121-10 
 A Resolution accepting the resignation of Debra Osborne as a member of the Park Board 
 
c. RES. NO. R-122-10  

A Resolution appointing a member to the Park Board 
 

d. RES. NO. R-123-10 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Park Board  
 

e. RES. NO. R-124-10 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Board of Zoning Appeals 
 
 



 2

 
 
 
 

f. RES. NO. R-125-10 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Tree Committee 
 

g. RES. NO. R-126-10 
A Resolution authorizing the Law Director to petition the Board of County Commissioners of 
Miami County, Ohio for a change in the boundary line of Washington Township 

 
h. RES. NO. R-127-10 

A Resolution of Intent to vacate Public Right-Of-Way 
 
       i. RES. NO. R-128-10 

 A Resolution authorizing a purchase order to SimplexGrinnell LP for the design and 
 installation of a sprinkler system for the Fire Department building 
 
j. RES. NO. R-129-10 
 A Resolution approving the purchase of excess liability insurance 
 

CC..  OOTTHHEERR  
  

a. Street Levy Information – Ms. Amy Havenar 
  
bb..  2010 Street Repair Program – Mr. Doug Harter / Mr. Don Seeberger  

  
DD..  AADDJJOOUURRNNMMEENNTT  TTOO  EEXXEECCUUTTIIVVEE  SSEESSSSIIOONN  

            
a.  To consider the appointment, employment, dismissal, discipline or compensation of the City  
     Manager 

              
EE..    AADDJJOOUURRNNMMEENNTT  

 
 

  



 1

                                                                                                                                                                                       
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday October 5, 2010 

7:30 P.M. 
 

Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present were 
Commissioners Vogt, Martin, Terry, and Wilson.  Absent: None. 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 
 

PROCLAMATION – Community Planning Month in the City of Piqua 
Accepting – Mr. Chris Schmiesing – City Planner 
 
Mayor Fess read the proclamation and presented it to City Planner Chris Schmiesing. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
Approval of the minutes from the September 21, 2010 Regular Piqua City Commission meeting. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that the minutes of the September 
21, 2010 Regular Piqua City Commission meeting be approved. Voice vote, Aye: Wilson, Fess, Martin, 
Terry, and Vogt. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
RES. NO. R-116-10 
 
A Resolution authorizing the execution of a loan agreement with Morris Heating, Cooling and Comfort 
Systems, LLC in the amount of $45,000 
 
City Manager Enderle stated the City of Piqua received a $90,000 grant from the United States 
Department of Agriculture. The amount of the loan to Morris Heating, Cooling and Comfort Systems, 
LLC will be $45,000 and the terms of this agreement will be for seven years at 3% interest. Morris 
Heating, Cooling and Comfort Systems, LLC is a new business who will sell and service geothermal 
heating /cooling systems, outdoor awning units for residential and commercial applications, and 
outdoor lighting systems. They plan to use the money to purchase vehicles, tools, office equipment 
and fixtures, said City Manager Enderle. 
 
Linda Morris, CEO of Morris Heating, Cooling and Comfort Systems, LLC, came forward and gave a 
brief overview of the plans for the use of the grant money.  Ms. Morris thanked Bill Lutz and the 
Development Department for helping them secure the loan. 
 
City Manager Enderle stated this is the first program that has required City Commission approval. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Joe Francis, Parkway Drive came forward and asked if he heard right the loan was from the United 
States Department of Agriculture?   City Manager Enderle stated yes, this is the first time the City has 
taken advantage of this program. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-116-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Martin, Terry, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-116-10 adopted. 



 2

 
RES. NO. R-117-10 
 
A Resolution approving the Fiscal Year 2010 Community Development Block Grant Tier One 
Downtown Revitalization Program application 
 
City Manager Enderle stated the resolution is to support the City’s application for funding through the 
Ohio Department of Development’s Tier One Downtown Revitalization Grant Program for the creation 
of a comprehensive downtown revitalization and development plan for the Riverfront Mill District area.  
Wood Street, South Wayne Street, West Water Street, Spring Street, and the Great Miami River 
bound the area for revitalization. The grant requires a match by the city, and the city’s request for 
$23,500 demands the city’s match be $11,750.  The Development Department has the sufficient funds 
within the department’s budget to meet the match requirements, said City Manager Enderle. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Brad Boehringer, Mound Street, came forward and asked what the current status is of the former Mill 
Building, and if there are any plans for refurbishing it.   City Manager Enderle stated at this time there 
are no current plans to refurbish the building. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, that Resolution No. R-117-10 be 
adopted. Voice vote, Aye:  Martin, Wilson, Vogt, Terry, and Fess. Nay: None.  Motion carried 
unanimously.  Mayor Fess declared Resolution No. R-117-10 adopted.  
 
RES. NO. 118-10 
 
A Resolution of authorization to submit an application for Federal Safetea-Lu Funds through the Miami 
Valley Regional Planning Commission 
 
City Manager Enderle stated currently streetscape features are on Main Street from Wood Street to 
Greene Street.  The North Main Streetscape would extend the streetscape design north to Riverside 
Drive to complete the streetscaping on the North Main Street Corridor.  The streetscape will be the 
similar to those currently in place on Main Street, including new concrete sidewalk, brick pavers, 
decorative light poles, street signage, trash receptacles, tree grates and benches, said City Manager 
Enderle. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-118-10 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-118-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Vogt, Martin, and Terry. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously.  
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-118-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-119-10 
 
A Resolution authorizing the assignment of a certain Canal Lease No. 21 
 
City Manager Enderle stated the City of Piqua is responsible for paying the canal leases due to the 
State of Ohio semi-annually, and in order to recoup these costs, enters into a lease agreement with 
the property owner for semi-annual payments.  This is not a profit making scenario, the city is breaking 
even by assessing property owners the fees the city is paying to the State on behalf of the property, 
said City Manager Enderle. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-119-10. 
 



 3

Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, that Resolution No. R-119-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Terry, Fess, Wilson, Vogt, and Martin. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-119-10 adopted. 
 
RES. NO. R-120-10 
 
A Resolution authorizing legal counsel to settle two litigation matters 
 
Law Director Stacy Wall gave a brief explanation on the nature of the litigation matter involving a 
former City employee.  
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-120-10. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-120-10 be 
adopted. Roll call, Aye: Martin, Terry, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: Vogt. Motion carried on a 4-1 vote.  
Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-120-10 adopted on a 4-1 vote. 
 
OTHER 
 
Street Levy Information – Ms. Amy Havenar 
 
City Engineer Amy Havenar gave a power point presentation on the ¼% renewal levy and citing the 
reasons for the renewal.  A fact sheet with information is available on the City’s website and in various 
city offices. Ms. Havenar pointed out that this is a renewal levy and is income based, and the money 
generated from this would be roughly $1 million and is used only for construction, reconstruction, and 
resurfacing of roadways.  In the last ten years the city has resurfaced 29 miles of streets, and 
reconstructed 4.6 miles of streets, said Ms. Havenar. 
 
Brad Boehringer, Mound Street, asked if this included the Route 36 Bridge Deck Replacement.  Ms. 
Havenar stated no that is not a city project.   
 
Mayor Fess stated this is a renewal levy, and is the same as it has been for the last twenty years. It is 
important to take advantage of grant money whenever possible. This can be used in conjunction with 
the local match for grant money received.  Commissioner Wilson stated there are 103 miles of streets 
in Piqua now, and we are still using the same money we used twenty years ago when there were only 
80 miles of streets. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked Ms. Havenar for her presentation. 
 
American Public Power Association – 75th Anniversary of APPA (Video) – Mr. Ed Krieger 
 
Power Systems Director Ed Krieger presented a short video on the APPA; further stating the City of 
Piqua has been a member of the APPA since 1969. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked Mr. Krieger for his presentation.  Mayor Fess also thanked the Mr. Krieger and 
the Distribution Department employees for their dedication to the City of Piqua, and wished APPA a 
Happy 70th Anniversary. 
 
Monthly Reports – August 2010 
 
Monthly Reports were accepted. 
 
 
 
 
 



 4

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Dan Ramer, Broadway, came forward and thanked City Manager Enderle, Assistant City 
Manager/Economic Development Director Bill Murphy, City Commissioners, and all the City 
Departments for the job they do everyday. 
 
Mr. Ramer continued by stating he appreciates the challenges the city faces each and every day, 
through these difficult economic times with the many demands made on the city.  Mr. Ramer stated 
what he values in a City Commissioner is for them to be positive and well informed, intelligent, and 
want what is best for the city as a whole.  Mr. Ramer continued stating he wants a city that is 
progressive, welcoming and helpful to businesses, helps to promote a community that is clean, 
orderly, well run, and a good place to work and live. Mr. Ramer further stated he believes the City 
Commission is doing a wonderful job, and they are not alone. He and many other citizens of Piqua 
have confidence that this City Commission and the City officials have done, and will do what is in the 
best interest of the City of Piqua in the long run. Mr. Ramer ended by stating, “Keep up the good 
work”. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked Mr. Ramer for his comments and stated it was greatly appreciated. 
  
Edna Stiefel, Boone Street, came forward and thanked all Piqua residents, and Susan Hartley of the 
Piqua Daily Call for their support in getting the information out concerning the recent increase in the 
number of break ins in Piqua. 
 
Mayor Fess thanked Ms. Stiefel for her concern for residents and her continued work with the City.  
Mayor Fess stated that the Piqua Daily Call is again running the police beat in the newspaper. 
 
Regina Favorite, New Haven Road, asked if the old Atomic Plant located in Piqua was a part of the 
APPA? 
 
Mr. Krieger stated there were only two facilities built in the country, and one was located in the City of 
Piqua. 
 
Mayor Fess asked about the use of the Dome at this time.  Mr. Krieger stated his office is located in 
the old reactor and is checked yearly for radiation. 
 
Luke Bolin, Ann Street, voiced his concern over the recent breaking and entering in the city, and 
asked what citizens can do if someone is trying to break in to his or her home. 
 
Police Chief Jamison stated the Police Department should be notified.  Law Director Wall stated the 
city cannot legally advise citizens.  Mayor Fess stated citizens should just use common sense and be 
careful.  
 
John Brown came forward and stated he wanted to publicly support the Street Levy Renewal, and the 
Piqua Library Operational Levy.  Mr. Brown voiced his concern over the increased negativity in the 
city, and asked citizens to work together to make Piqua a better place to live and work. Other 
municipalities are facing the same problems; Piqua is not alone, said Mr. Brown.  Positively Promoting 
Piqua (PPP) is a supporting group providing the silent majority a forum to voice their support of all that 
is good and what is going on in the community.  
 
Jeanie Jordan Bates, Broadway, came forward and asked citizens to vote for the Piqua Library 
Operational Levy, citing the various reasons it is very important to get out and vote.  Ms. Bates further 
stated if the levy does not pass the Library would have to make major cuts. 
 
Ruth Koon, Park Avenue, representing MainStreet Piqua came forward and stated “The Chocolate 
Walk” sponsored by Winans and will take place downtown on Friday October 15, 2010 from 5:00 to 
8:00 P.M. Ms. Koon briefly explained the nature of the walk and who would benefit from the proceeds. 
Tickets will be sold for $15 each and are needed in order to participate; anyone having questions can 
contact the MainStreet Piqua office at 773-9355.  



 5

 
Also on Saturday, October 16, 2010 a Breast Cancer Awareness Walk sponsored by Ben and Lois 
Scott will take place along the bike path leaving from the Gazebo at 9:00 AM and ending at the Lock 9 
Park.  There is no registration, donations will be accepted, said Ms, Koon. 
 
Edna Stiefel, Boone Street, stated Northparks Neighborhood Association will be meeting on Thursday, 
October 14, 2010 at 7:00 P.M. at Wilder School and invited all residents to attend.  Ms. Stiefel stated 
the next project the Northparks Neighborhood Association plans to raise funds for is the replacement 
of the fence around Kiwanis Park. 
 
City Commission Comments 
 
Commissioner Vogt thanked John Brown and Dan Ramer for their comments, stating he has not felt 
this good in a long time. 
 
Commissioner Wilson thanked MainStreet Piqua for hosting the Car Show and Stride & Ride that was 
held recently, stating it was very well attended. 
 
Commissioner Wilson also thanked the Positively Promoting Piqua representatives for their positive 
comments. 
 
Commissioner Terry stated she has received a lot of positive support during the recall process, and 
wanted to thank the citizens for their support and truly appreciates it. 
 
Mayor Fess appreciates the Positively Promoting Piqua group for their support, and stated it is great to 
have people stand up for the community, it shows the community is pulling together. 
 
Mayor Fess reminded citizens the Veterans will be leaving on Friday Oct 8, 2010 for their trip to 
Washington D.C. and all are welcome to come and see them off. 
 
Adjournment  
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Regular Piqua 
City Commission Meeting at 8:55 P.M. Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Wilson, Terry, Fess, and Vogt. Nay: 
None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

          _____________________________ 
                 LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

PASSED: ______________________ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 

         REBECCA J. COOL 
     CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 28-10 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AUTHORIZE THE ANNEXATION OF LAND OWNED 
BY THE CITY OF PIQUA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

 
WHEREAS, the city of Piqua owns territory contiguous to the limits of 

the municipal corporation, as described by Exhibit ‘A’ and shown in Exhibit 
‘B’, hereinafter referred to as the subject property; and  

WHEREAS, the city of Piqua desires to annex the subject property to 
combine the territory with an adjacent tract of land also owned by the city of 
Piqua; and 

WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code §§ 709.13 through 709.21 provide the 
process for the annexation of territory owned by a municipal corporation; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Commission of the City 
of Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that: 

SEC. 1: Pursuant to the process of annexation provided for by 
Ohio Revised Code §§ 709.13 through 709.21, this Commission hereby 
authorizes the annexation of the subject property. 

SEC. 2:   The City Manager shall execute the necessary 
annexation petition document. 

SEC. 3: The Law Director shall prosecute the proceedings 
necessary to effect the annexation. 

SEC. 4:   This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law 

 

        
   _____________________________ 

       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
        
PASSED:   _______________________   

ATTEST:    _______________________ 

        REBECCA J. COOL 

                   CLERK OF COMMISSION



1 

   

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of October 19, 2010 

TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 

FROM:  Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

SUBJECT: Ordinance to authorize annexation of municipally owned territory 

 

PURPOSE: 
Approve an ordinance to authorize the annexation of a 1.353 acre tract of land owned by the city of Piqua. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the ordinance to authorize the law director to file an annexation petition with the County 
Commissioners and complete the process of annexing the subject property.   

BACKGROUND: 
The city of Piqua Municipal Power System has purchased a 1.353 acre property located contiguous to the 
existing city of Piqua corporation limits between Hemm Avenue and Statler Avenue.  The subject property 
is a portion of the former railroad right‐of‐way that has since been abandoned by the railroad and 
purchased by others.  The Power System has also purchased the contiguous land inside the city of Piqua 
corporation limits and has requested the vacation of the alley right‐of‐way lying between these two tracts.  
The intent is to combine the two tracts and the vacated alley right‐of‐way into one parcel.  This will 
facilitate the planned construction of a new service center at this location.       

ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve ordinance to authorize the annexation and direct the law director to complete the annexation 

process. 
2) Defeat the ordinance and deny the annexation request. 

DISCUSSION: 
The Ohio Revised Code includes an annexation process specific to municipally owned territory contiguous 
to the corporation limits.  The process requires the municipal legislative authority to first approve the 
annexation by ordinance and then forward the annexation petition to the County Commission.  Once 
received, the County Board of Commissioners are then required to enter upon the journal of the board a 
resolution granting the annexation.  A draft copy of the annexation petition (less exhibits) is included with 
this report for reference.     

In accordance the City of Piqua/Washington Township annexation agreement, the City Commission is also 
being asked to act on a separate resolution item that provides the Law Director with authorization to 
execute the proceedings required to exclude the territory from the township upon completion of the 
annexation.    

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 



SUBJECT: Ordinance to authorize annexation of municipally owned territory 
 

 Page 2 
 

The city of Piqua already owns the subject property and is responsible for the maintenance and upkeep of 
the parcel.  Less the filing fee associated with submitting the annexation petition to the County, the 
annexation of this territory will have no fiscal impact on the City.  

COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
The annexation of this parcel will allow the Power System to continue to move forward with plans to 
construct a new service center at this location.  The construction of these improvements will provide the 
Power System with a modern facility and enhance the delivery of power distribution services to the entire 
community. 

CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
The proposed request is consistent and compatible with all adopted City plans and policies, including the 
Goal, Principles, and Objectives and Strategies outlined in the Land Use and Utilities chapters of the Plan It 
Piqua Comprehensive Plan document. 

 



DRAFT COPY 

 

 



Exhibit ‘A’ 
 

 



Exhibit ‘A’ 
 



E
xh

ib
it 

‘B
’ 

 

 



                                         RESOLUTION NO. R-121-10 
 
 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE RESIGNATION  
                         OF DEBRA OSBORNE AS A MEMBER OF THE 

                           PARK BOARD 
 

 
WHEREAS, Debra Osborne was appointed to the Park Board on March 15, 

2004 by Resolution No.R-28-04; and 
 
WHEREAS, Debra Osborne submitted a letter of resignation to the Park 

Board on July 30, 2010. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby accepts the resignation of Debra 
Osborne as a member of the Park Board. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                      RESOLUTION NO. R-122-10 
 
 
                      A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE 
                                                    PARK BOARD 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Kevin Pryfogle is hereby appointed to fill the unexpired term of 
Michael Perando as a member of the Park Board for a term to expire on March 4, 
2014 or until his successor is confirmed and qualified; 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                      RESOLUTION NO. R-123-10 
 
 
                      A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE 
                                                    PARK BOARD 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Steven Frazier is hereby appointed to fill the unexpired term of 
Debra Osborne as a member of the Park Board for a term to expire on March 4, 
2014 or until his successor is confirmed and qualified; 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                      RESOLUTION NO. R-124-10 
 
 
                      A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE 
                                      BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Shawn Hicks is hereby appointed to fill the unexpired term of 
Rebecca Harrison as a member of the Board of Zoning Appeals for a term to expire 
on March 1, 2013 or until his successor is confirmed and qualified; 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                      RESOLUTION NO. R-125-10 
 
 
                      A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE 
                                              TREE COMMITTEE 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Jean Franz is hereby appointed to fill the unexpired term of 
Bradley S. Boehringer as a member of the Tree Committee for a term to expire on 
March 1, 2012 or until her successor is confirmed and qualified; 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. R- 126-10 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE LAW DIRECTOR TO 
 PETITION THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

OF MIAMI COUNTY, OHIO FOR A CHANGE IN THE BOUNDARY LINES OF 
WASHINGTON TOWNSHIP 

 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Contingent upon the granting of the subject annexation and in 
accordance with the annexation agreement attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A’, the Law 
Director is hereby authorized on behalf of this Commission to present to the Board of 
County Commissioners of Miami County, Ohio, a petition requesting the changes in 
the boundary lines of Washington Township as may be necessary so that said 
township does not include the 1.353 acres proposed for annexation to the City of 
Piqua, as shown in the supporting documents attached hereto as Exhibit ‘B’. 

 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION



EXHIBIT A 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

 



EXHIBIT B 

 

 



EXHIBIT B 

 

 



E
XH

IB
IT

 B
 

 
 



                                  RESOLUTION NO. R-127-10 
                              

 
A RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO VACATE 
           PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 

 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Piqua Charter Section 98, this Commission must 
adopt a resolution expressing its intention to vacate a portion of platted alley right-of-
way located west of S. Main Street between Hemm Avenue and Statler Avenue. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby intends to vacate a portion of platted 
alley right-of-way located west of S. Main Street between Hemm Avenue and Statler 
Avenue, as described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. The City Manager or his duly 
authorized representative is hereby directed to cause notice of this Resolution to be 
served by certified mail upon all persons whose property abuts said tract.  Said 
notice shall state the time and place at which objections can be heard by the 
Planning Commission. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION



E
xh

ib
it 

‘A
’ 

 

 



1 

   

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of October 19, 2010 

TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 

FROM:  Chris Schmiesing, City Planner 

SUBJECT: Petition to vacate a portion of platted alley right‐of‐way 

 

PURPOSE: 
Approve a resolution to declare intent to vacate a portion of the platted public right‐of‐way and refer item 
to Planning Commission for study. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Resolution to initiate the process required by the City of Piqua Charter to consider a request to 
vacate a portion of platted public right of way.  

BACKGROUND: 
The city of Piqua Municipal Power System has purchased the property located on either side of the subject 
alley way and desires to consolidate the parcels into one tract of land.  The purpose for combining the 
parcels is to create one tract large enough to accommodate an improvement project proposed at this site.  
The subject right‐of‐way is currently vacant with no existing surface improvements found at this location.  
The primary land use in this area is light industrial.     

ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve Resolution to refer the request to the Planning Commission for study and a recommendation. 
2) Defeat the Resolution and refuse to consider the vacation request. 

DISCUSSION: 
There are no adjacent properties that use or depend upon this alley right‐of‐way for access.  The proposed 
vacation would result in the vacating of the subject alley right‐of‐way that has not been in use for quite 
some time.  Vacating the alley right‐of‐way will allow the property to be combined with the adjoining 
properties.  Upon replatting the land into one tract sufficient acreage will be available to facilitate the 
construction of the proposed improvements. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
Forwarding this request to the Planning Commission for further study will have no fiscal impact on the City.  

COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
Upon completing a cursory review of the request the Development Department has determined that it 
appears unlikely the proposed vacation would have an adverse affect on the surrounding property owners 
or the interest of the general public. 

 

 

 



 Page 2 
 

CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
The proposed vacation is consistent and compatible with all adopted City plans and policies, including the 
Goal, Principles, and Objectives and Strategies outlined in the Land Use and Utilities chapters of the Plan It 
Piqua Comprehensive Plan document.  



RESOLUTION NO. R–128-10 
 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PURCHASE ORDER TO 

SIMPLEXGRINNELL LP FOR THE DESIGN AND 
INSTALLATION OF A SPRINKLER SYSTEM FOR THE FIRE 

DEPARTMENT BUILDING 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Piqua Fire Department desires to install a sprinkler system in their complex 
to enhance the safety of their building; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua provided for the design and installation of a sprinkler system in 
the 2010 budget appropriations; 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 30, 2010, the City of Piqua was awarded grant funding from the AFG, 
Assistance to Firefighters Grant, for modifying facilities enhancement in accordance with the grant 
application; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the above described grant allocates funds for the design and installation of a 
sprinkler system to the Piqua Fire Department; 
 
 WHEREAS, after proper advertisement, bids were opened resulting in the tabulation of bids 
as listed in Exhibit “A” attached hereto;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami 
County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized to SimplexGrinnell LP for the design 
and installation of a sprinkler system pursuant to the bid specifications; 
 
 SEC. 2: The Finance Director is hereby authorized to draw her warrants from time to 
time on the appropriate account of the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not 
exceeding a total of $76,945; 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest 
period allowed by law. 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



1 

   
  

 

CITY COMMISSION MEETING REPORT 
 

    For the Regular Meeting of October 19, 2010  
 

   
TO:  Fred Enderle, City Manager 
 
FROM: Fire Chief Mike Rindler 
  
SUBJECT: Design & Installation of a Sprinkler System in the Fire Dept. Building 
 
 
PURPOSE:   
Approve the Resolution No. R-128-10 authorizing a contract for the design and installation of 
a sprinkler system in the Fire Dept. building. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
I am requesting approval of Resolution No. R-128-10 authorizing a contract for the design and 
installation of a sprinkler system in the Fire Dept. building. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Our staff obtained a FEMA grant in the amount of $82,377 for the design and installation of a 
sprinkler system in our Fire Dept. building.  The Fire Dept. complex is 83 years old and has 
two stories with 24/7 occupation of the facility.  The living quarters are located on the second 
floor and there is a partial basement under part of the office area as well.  The installation will 
be conducted while the building remains open for normal business and operational for 
emergency responses.  We expect the installation to be complete by March 15, 2011.  This 
sprinkler system will help to ensure the safety of our firefighters, officers and staff and also 
our equipment, vehicles and furniture. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
1) Approve Resolution No. R-128-10  authorizing a contract for the design and installation of 

a sprinkler system in the Fire Dept. building. 
2) Do not approve the Resolution and lose out on the grant funds available to us while also 

jeopardizing the opportunity to increase our safety within the building. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
1)  This alternative will allow for us to expand our safety options for the employees and 
equipment that are always housed in the Fire Dept. complex. 
2)   The alternative for not installing the fire suppression system is not recommended because 
if we do experience a fire within the fire department while out at another fire, we could lose all 
remaining emergency, fire and rescue equipment.  
 



 Page 2 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
1)  The FEMA grant calls for a 10% match of City funds.  We have budgeted $8,237 for this 
expense.  The award to SimplexGrinnell will be for their bid amount of $69,950.00 and we 
have included a 10% contingency on the Resolution for any unexpected cost overruns.   
2)  The City would lose out on an $82,377 benefit if we choose to go with this alternative. 
 
COMMUNITY IMPACT: 
The Community would benefit by making our older building safer for the firefighters and all 
the expensive equipment.  We house all fire and rescue equipment owned and operated by the 
City of Piqua in this building. 
 
CONFORMITY TO CITY PLANS & POLICIES: 
If this structure was built or remolded today a fire suppression system would be required.  We 
have bid this project to comply with all current fire and building codes. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 



B
id

 T
ab

ul
at

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 F

ire
 D

ep
t. 

Sp
rin

kl
er

 S
ys

te
m

Ex
hi

bi
t "

A
"

O
pe

ne
d 

on
 O

ct
ob

er
 5

, 2
01

0 
at

 2
:0

0 
p.

m
.

Ite
m

 
#

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n

A
-1

 S
pr

in
kl

er
 &

 
S

ys
te

m
s 

In
te

gr
at

io
n

C
en

tra
l F

ire
 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n 

C
o 

In
c.

C
ra

yn
on

 F
ire

 
P

ro
te

ct
io

n
S

im
pl

ex
G

rin
ne

ll 
LP

C
om

pl
et

e 
Fi

re
 

S
pr

in
kl

er
 &

 
S

af
et

y
M

ia
m

is
bu

rg
, O

H
 

S
pr

in
gf

ie
ld

, O
H

 
M

or
ai

ne
, O

H
 

W
es

t C
he

st
er

, O
H

 
S

pr
in

gf
ie

ld
, O

H
 

1
E

nt
ire

 H
ea

te
d 

A
re

a 
- W

et
 

S
pr

in
kl

er
 S

ys
te

m
39

,9
70

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

72
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
  

88
,3

14
.0

0
$ 

   
 

41
,1

76
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
  

55
,8

30
.0

0
$ 

   
   

 

2

S
ec

on
d 

Fl
oo

r A
tti

c 
A

re
a 

&
 

A
ny

 o
th

er
 a

re
as

 s
us

ce
pt

ib
le

 
to

 fr
ee

zi
ng

 - 
D

ry
 S

pr
in

kl
er

 
S

ys
te

m
17

,9
10

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

9,
30

0.
00

$ 
   

   
 

14
,7

67
.0

0
$ 

   
 

6,
84

5.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

8,
52

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

3

R
un

ni
ng

 W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
fro

m
 

ta
p-

in
 to

 s
pr

in
kl

er
 s

ys
te

m
 

in
si

de
 th

e 
bu

ild
in

g
26

,9
20

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

10
,9

43
.0

0
$ 

   
  

22
,9

63
.0

0
$ 

   
 

9,
67

3.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

4
S

up
pl

y 
ba

ck
flo

w
 p

re
ve

nt
io

n 
de

vi
ce

2,
80

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

 
4,

09
4.

00
$ 

   
   

 
4,

35
5.

00
$ 

   
   

3,
95

6.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

3,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

5
E

le
ct

ric
 (o

pt
io

n 
on

 S
im

pl
ex

 b
id

)
2,

65
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
6

A
la

rm
 (o

pt
io

n 
on

 C
om

pl
et

e 
Fi

re
 b

id
)

3,
15

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

7
on

 S
im

pl
ex

 b
id

)
5,

65
0.

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

 

To
ta

l P
ric

e
87

,6
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
  

96
,3

37
.0

0
$ 

   
  

13
0,

39
9.

00
$ 

  
69

,9
50

.0
0

$ 
   

   
   

  
71

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

   
 



   
   

   
   

 F
ir

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t S
pr

in
kl

er
 S

ys
te

m
 B

id
 S

co
ri

ng
 S

he
et

Bi
d 

It
em

s 
Re

qu
ir

ed
Co

m
pl

et
e 

Fi
re

 S
pr

in
kl

er
Si

m
pl

ex
 G

ri
nn

el
l

Ce
nt

ra
l F

ir
e 

Pr
ot

ec
tio

n
Cr

ay
no

n 
Fi

re
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n
A
‐1

 S
pr

in
kl

er

W
ill

 M
ee

t c
od

es
 a

nd
   

   
   

   
   

 y
es

   
   

   
ye

s
N

o 
Ex

ce
pt

io
n 

N
ot

ed
   

   
   

   
   

   
ye

s
N

o 
Ex

ce
pt

io
n

Re
gu

la
tio

ns
 in

 S
pe

cs
.

Ru
n 

W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
lin

e
   

   
   

   
   

  n
o

   
   

   
ye

s
   

   
   

   
   

ye
s

   
   

   
   

   
   

ye
s

   
   

  y
es

A
ud

ib
le

/V
is

ua
l A

la
rm

   
   

   
   

   
 y

es
   

   
   

ye
s

N
o 

Ex
ce

pt
io

n 
N

ot
ed

   
   

   
   

   
   

ye
s

N
o 

Ex
ce

pt
io

n
Fo

r 
W

at
er

 F
lo

w

W
et

 S
ys

te
m

 
   

   
   

   
   

 y
es

   
   

   
ye

s
   

   
   

   
   

 y
es

   
   

   
   

   
   

ye
s

   
   

  y
es

D
ry

 S
ys

te
m

   
   

   
   

   
 y

es
   

   
   

  
   

   
   

ye
s

   
   

   
   

   
 y

es
   

   
   

   
   

   
ye

s
   

   
  y

es

Ba
ck

flo
w

 P
re

ve
nt

er
   

   
   

   
   

 y
es

   
   

   
ye

s
   

   
   

   
   

 y
es

   
   

   
   

   
   

ye
s

   
   

  y
es

Pr
ev

ai
lin

g 
w

ag
e 

   
   

   
   

   
  n

o
   

   
   

ye
s

N
o 

Ex
ce

pt
io

n 
N

ot
ed

   
   

   
   

   
   

ye
s

N
o 

Ex
ce

pt
io

n
D

av
is
‐B

ac
on

W
ill

 o
bt

ai
n 

al
l p

er
m

its
   

   
   

   
   

ye
s

   
   

   
ye

s
N

o 
Ex

ce
pt

io
n 

N
ot

ed
   

   
   

   
   

   
ye

s
N

o 
Ex

ce
pt

io
n

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
M

ar
ch

 1
5

   
   

   
   

   
ye

s
   

   
   

ye
s

N
o 

Ex
ce

pt
io

n 
N

ot
ed

   
   

   
   

   
   

ye
s

N
o 

Ex
ce

pt
io

n
of

 2
01

1

W
ith

in
 a

llo
tt

ed
 g

ra
nt

   
   

   
   

   
ye

s
   

   
   

ye
s

   
   

   
   

   
  n

o
   

   
   

   
   

   
 n

o
   

   
  n

o
do

lla
rs

 a
w

ar
de

d

Th
re

e 
Re

fe
re

nc
es

   
   

   
   

   
ye

s
   

   
   

ye
s

   
   

   
   

   
 y

es
   

   
   

   
   

   
ye

s
   

   
 y

es



RESOLUTION NO. R-129-10 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF EXCESS LIABILITY 
INSURANCE 

 
WHEREAS, certain specialty areas do not fall within the coverage of the City’s 

general liability policy and excess liability insurance is needed for coverage; and 
 

WHEREAS, excess liability insurance covers the City’s dams for its lakes and 
canal, pollution and claims arising out of an injury or property damage as a result of an 
exercise of its emergency assistance agreements with other communities specifically 
related to power; and   

 
WHEREAS, Associated Electric & Gas Insurance Services Limited (“AEGIS”) has 

provided excess liability coverage to the City for its dams and power utility for over 
twenty years. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, 
Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that:: 
 

SEC. 1:   Excess liability coverage for the City’s dams, pollution and 
emergency assistance agreements is hereby provided by Associated Electric & Gas 
Insurance Services Limited (“AEGIS”) for 2010-2011. 

 
SEC. 2:  The Finance Director is authorized to draw her warrant on the 

appropriate account in an amount not to exceed $55,500. 
 

SEC. 3:  The Finance Director certifies that said funds are available. 
 

SEC. 4.  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from the earliest period 
allowed by law. 

 
 

        
  ________________________ 

        LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED: ______________________________ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________ 
   REBECCA J. COOL 
   CITY COMMISSION CLERK 
 

 








